MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD.
ISO 9001:2008 Certified Star Export House

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LIMITED
Report on the Standalone Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Mayur Leather
Products Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our Opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effects and indeterminate effect of the matters described in the basis for Qualified
Opinion section below, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information
required by the Companies Act,2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the company as at March 31, 2020 and total comprehensive income (comprising profit and
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Qualified Opinion
1. As Detailed in Note No. 44 of Standalone Financial Statements Gratuity has not been
provided as per actuary valuation given in IND AS-19 (Employees Benefits).

2. As Detailed in Note No. 45 of Standalone Financial Statements Loans and Advances
amounting in Rs. 625.61 Lakhs are subject to confirmation and Reconciliation.

Emphasis of matter

We draw your attention to Note 43 to the standalone financial statements, which describe the
management's assessment of the impact of the outbreak of coronavirus (Covid-19) pandemic on
the business operations of the Company. The management believes that no adjustments, other
than those already considered, are required in the financial statements as it does not impact the
current financial year, however in view of the various preventive measures taken (such as
complete lock-down restrictions by the Government of India, travel restrictions etc.) and highly
uncertain economic environment, a definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent
periods is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Key audit matters

1. We draw attention to Annexure to the Auditor's Report Para No. vii (A) that the company is
not regular in depositing its statutory dues with appropriate authorities. Our opinion is not
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qualified in respect of this matter.

2. The Company is in process to prepare Return and reconciliation for goods and service tax
for the financial year 2019-20. In the absence of sufficient details and information, we are
unable to determine the correct liabilities of tax, interest and penalty; accordingly we are
unable to comment on the impact of related liability included in these Standalone
Financial Statements

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the Standalone
Financial Statements and our Auditors Report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this Auditor's Report. Our opinion on the Standalone Financial
Statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone
Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appear to be materially
misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there is material misstatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take
appropriate action as applicable under the relevant laws and regulations.

We have nothing to reportin this regard.
Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS
financial statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
(including other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management & Board of Directors is
responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to cease operations or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
company's financial reporting process.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to
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issue an Auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
skepticism through-out the audit. We also;

74

Identify and asses the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risk and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Act,
we are responsible for expressing our opinion whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our Auditors report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusion are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our
Auditors report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and contents of the Standalone Financial
Statements including the disclosures and whether the Standalone Financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationship and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safe guards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matter in
our Auditors report unless law or regulations precludes public disclosures about the
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matters or when in extremely rare circumstances ,we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequence of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communications

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act (“the Order”), and
on the basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered
appropriate and according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in the
Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

C) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure A.

0) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information
and explanations given to us:

i. As Explained to us, the Company has no material impact of pending
Litigation as at March 31, 2020 on its financial position in its standalone Ind
AS financial statements;

ii. The Company does not have derivative contracts and in respect of other long-
term contracts there are no material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2020;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the
year ended March 31, 2020;

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not
applicable to the Company for the year ended March 31, 2020.

(i) with respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors' Report under Section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
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of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid
down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other
details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.

For H.C. GARG & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000152C

Sd/-
(MADHUKAR GARG)
PROPRIETOR
M.NO. 070162
Place: Jaipur
Date: 23/07/2020
UDIN : 20070162AAAAAJI2562
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Annexure A to Independent Auditor's Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) of the Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements forming
part of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Mayur Leather Products
Limited on the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Mayur Leather Products Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both issued by the
ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system with
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reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) Pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) Provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) Provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In our opinion, the Company has maintained, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For H.C. GARG & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000152C

sd/-

(MADHUKAR GARG)
PROPRIETOR
M.NO. 070162

Place: Jaipur
Date: 23/07/2020
UDIN : 20070162AAAAAI2562
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Annexure B to Independent Auditors

Referred to in paragraph 1 of the Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements forming part
of the Independent Auditors' Report of even date to the members of Mayur Leather Products
Limited on the Ind AS Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Vi.

(€)) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.

(b) The property, plant and equipment are physically verified by the Management. In
our opinion the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies have
been noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 7(a) on property, plant
and equipment to the Ind AS financial statements, are held in the name of the
Company.

The physical verification of inventory (excluding inventories lying with third parties and

stock in transit) have been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during

the year. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially been
confirmed by them. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared to book records were not material.

The Company has granted loans to body corporate covered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

a. In our opinion, the rate of interest and other terms and conditions on which the
loans had been granted to the Body Corporate listed in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act, are prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the
company.

b. In our opinion and according to the Information and Explanation given to us, that is
absence of agreement/arrangement, there is no stipulation of schedule of
Repayment of Principal and Payment of Interest. Hence, we are unable to make
specific comment on the Regularity of Repayment of Principal and Payment of
Interest, in such case.

C. In our Opinion and according to the information and Explanation given to us, in
absence of agreement/arrangement, we are unable to verify the total amount
overdue for more than ninety days, if any in respect of loan granted to a Body
corporate listed in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,
2013 in respect of investments made, loans granted, guarantees provided or security given
to the parties.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of
Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent
notified.

Maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Vil. (A) According to the books and records as produced and examined by us in
accordance with generally accepted auditing practices in India and also based on
Management representations, undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees' state Insurance Dues, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Custom Duty, Excise Duty, VAT, Goods & Service Tax Act, w.e.f. 01.07.2017 Cess
and Other material Statutory dues have generally not been regularly deposited, by
the Company during the year with the appropriate authorities in India. According
to the information and explanation given to us, undisputed amounts payable in
respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31st, 2020 for a period of
more than six months from the date of becoming payable.

(B) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there have been no disputed dues which have not been
deposited with the respective authorities in respect of Income Tax, Service Tax, Duty
of Custom, Duty of Excise and VAT, Goods & Service Tax Act, w.e.f.01.07.2017 as at
March 31, 2020.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings to any financial institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture
holders as at the Balance Sheet date.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of
Clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Act.

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it,
the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties which are in compliance
with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as required under
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section
133 of the Act.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the
provisions of Clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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XVi The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

For H.C. GARG & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000152C

Sd/-
(MADHUKAR GARG)
PROPRIETOR
M.NO. 070162
Place: Jaipur
Date: 23/07/2020
UDIN : 20070162AAAAAJ2562
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MAYDUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD
CIN: L191Z29RJ198TPLCODSESD
Regd Office: B-5, Viindavan Apartment, Vrindavan Vihar, Eing's Road, Jaipnc-302019 |
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March, 2020
IAMOUNT IN Rs-j|
Particnl Mote No As at 31/03/2020| As at 31L/03 /2019
{As per IND AS) jAs per IND AS)
| {1] ASSETS
|a} Properiy., Flant and Bqguipmesd Efa] 21.533.333.16 32,164, 06458
(b} Capital Work-in Progress i) 159 x 7. §
(e} Intangible asseis under developmeni Gic) 1,652 446.00 1,653 446.00
[d) Financial Asscts
(ij Investments T 13,896.270.00 16,8023 64637
i) Other financial assets 2] 2,539, 12140 |  2.440.331.90 |
|_le) Deferred tnx assets [net)
|l Other Nop CrLgpent Assets 9 4. 257.078.00 4,673.49] .56
|_Cugrent asseds
@} Inveniories 10 26,405,184.40 32,305.010.43
(b} Financial Asasts -
(i} Trade receivables 11 10,033, 735.79 16,511, 158,83
(i) Coash and cash squivalents 12 4. 404 47T0. 62 2.473.183.56
(ifi) Bank balances other than (Hi} above 13 T50,671.00 BT 087.T5
(iv) Loans & Advances 14 G6,26G61,.818.00 shik 9G24 TE.OO
v Others current financial asseta 15 & 4324 213.00 4. FH1 . TA3.00
|_[c) Cuppegt Toax Asszets (Net)
el Diber cuprent aspets 1 2L44626405 1 1575730452
| Toial Assots 101,763.015.38 | 926,320.519.00
| (EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
| Eguity
{8} Equily Share capital 17 49, 750, 78600 49,759, TG00
| (b} Ciher Eguity 13 18,61 1,489, 84 30,387.367.28 |
| Bon-curtent liabilities
[} Financinl Linbilitieas _ .
Boarowin 19 5,126,504 .00 5004 460.32
(b)) Deferred tax linbilities (Net) 20 1.430.413.34 1.,430.413.39
o} Crelied Mo el Liabsilities
Current linbilities
ia} Financial Liabitties
(i) Borrowings =1 61, 5893,474.40 69,020,731 65
il Trads bles 2 25,724, TT5.07 10,326, 128,656
Eﬁl Crther financial liabilitics 23 & BEDG6T1.00 122,523,00
() Crber ourrent Habilides 24 2331981204 1 50 300.G14.5] |
|_[c} Provisiona — 28 = =
|_[gl) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) B _
191.753.015.38 | 226,320,519.90 |
The accompanying notes are an integral
part aof these standalone finanoial
STmberien s,
|Fow and on behall of the Bonard An por Omr Soparate report of aven dote attoohod.
e Vi el -
R.E. FODDWR AMITA FODDAR For H.C. QARG & COMPANY
NEEC 8 Triveotox) (Cthmivpeerson O Trirootor CHARTERED ACCOUNTANS
BV Mo DOLASETL B Mo. 001430840 FRN: OO0 820
Bl f - Sl = Sl f
|Akibalenks Poddar Ankie Stiarms Bl swRaandene Chantge
JChick Minancial CMcen  (Conmpouty Secrg Froprietor
M T, Acs BT-IAE B Mo, OT0D 143
Poce: Jaipiir
Date 2307 /3020
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MAYDOR LEATHER PREODUCTS
CIN: L1912 0RIISETPLOGOIARS

Regd Odfice: B-5. Vrindovan Apartment. Veindovon Vibne. King's Rowd, Jaipur-802019

STATEMENT OF FROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERMD ENDED O Jlst March, 20240

For the Perlod Ended

For the Poriod Ended
Particulars Hote o, Jet March, 2020 (ND F1&t Morch, 2019 (IMD
AT) AS)
26 O 04 AST. T8 124, 196,401 80
ar 15,907, 850,25 17,540.848.80
112,592 708,08 143,746,048 58
28 65,691, 85622 B, 196, 6620
IPuarchase of Book-in-Trade - -
I ieventories of fimished goods., work-in-progress s Stock-
=T ] 0,007, 80087 33740, 8. 22
workees benedl 30 31.555445.50 0T 13784
Trreee comis Al B.254 2868 35 B, 156, TTILAd
|Dsprecintion and amortization experms BAFT 38L18 9826, 156,02
Elh:r COURN a2 BD.IIHD,I]BJ.M 1 264 892 7D
Total Expensen 148,534,757 168,852, 365.31 |
T. Profit beffore exeeprinnnl ftems & tas jm - T 36,243 149.77 a8
WL Emceyibonad Deos A3 -2 205, TOT.02 -
VEL, Profit before tax [V - VI 11 056, 35279 23, 4T 256 TF
WVIIL Tox expatme:
11} Current toog 3 -
(2] Defarred tac _ 058081
5] Emriler Yoar tax B0, 20 00
IH. Profit)|Loss) for the period from continling operations VII-
L] =11 743,677,783 A8 SR 6
X, Profief {Loss) fiom disoon tinfuing oparmtions - -
KL To expenss of dRoounting aperations - .
VR AYY.TH B, YRS B4R.04
74887778 -25,233.545.54 |
1] Hamic 41 =240 Tl
121 Dihateed =143 G522

The accompenying notes are an imegral part of these winpdakone
jrmmaclal stoderseots,

For and oo behall of the Board

As por Our Separate report of even date

altached,
Sdf= Sd/-

RE PODDAR AMITA FODDAR For H.G. GARG & COMPANY
[CEG & Divector) [Chatrperson f Threcton) CHARTERED ACCOUNTANS
DIN Mo.: (0145571 DIN Ho.: (0145486 FRN: 0001526

Helf= Sdf- B /-
Akhilesh Poddar Anlkit Sharma Madhokar Gurg
{Chlel Financial Oifloer) (Company Secreturyy FProprietor
M_Ho, Aos S7446 Mo, 070 163
Plage: Jakpur
| Date : 32407/2020

35" ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20




MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD.
ISO 9001:2008 Certified Star Export House

MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD
CIN: L19129R]1987PLC003889
Regd Office: B-5, Vrindavan Apartment, Vrindavan Vihar, King's Road, Jaipur-302019
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE Year Ended 31.03.2020
I I | (Amount in Rs.)

CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR
PARTICULARS
2019-20 2018-19
DETAILS AMOUNT DETAILS AMOUNT
A)|CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Proﬁt‘ before exceptional and tax as Statement Profit & Loss (36,342,149.77) (25,146,256.73)
(Increase in Reserves)
Adjusted for :-
Exceptional items 25,285,797.02 -
Adjustment for earlier year tax (689,525.00)
Finance Cost 8,254,286.35 7,417,335.60
Interest received (9,111,298.00) (8,670,095.45)
Depreciation 3,437,382.18 3,826,156.82
Profit on sale of fixed assets (27,078,786.02)
Other non-operating Income - (158,486.37)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (36,244,293.24) (22,731,346.13)
Adjusted for:-
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade and Other Payable (23,863,760.54) (2,739,828.63)
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade and other Receivables 33,546,593.03 30,300,138.56
Increase /( Decrease) in Provisions (except IT) -
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventory 5,899,825.97 5,100,683.32
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Current assets (15,688,870.43) 7,281,100.36
Cash Generated From Operations (36,350,505.21) 17,210,747 .48
Less:- Taxes Paid -
Net Cash Flow/(used)From Operating Activites (36,350,505.21) 17,210,747.48

B)|CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) / Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances - (2,365,000.00)
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Bank Balance 128,416.75 55,281.00

Purchase of Fixed Assets (2,235,927.00) (542,652.00)
Sale of Fixed Assets 35,176,166.26

Purchase /Sale of Investments 2,996,376.37 -
Increase/Decrease in other non-current financial assets (98,790.00) (160,720.00)

Increase/Decrease in other non-current assets 416,413.56 43,374.22
(Increase) / decrease to CWIP - -
Proceeds From Sales/written off of Fixed Assets -

Interest received 9,111,298.00 8,670,095.20
Dividend Received

Rent Income
Net Cash Flow/(used) in Investing Activities 45,493,953.94 5,700,378.42

C)|CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Procurement of Borrowings 1042133.68

Repayment of Borrowings (14,278,032.80)

Capital Subsidy under TUF - -

Interest paid (8,254,286.35) (7,417,335.60)
Net Cash Flow/(used) From Financing Activities (7,212,152.67) (21,695,368.40)
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,931,296.06 1,215,757.50
Opening balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 2,473,183.56 1,257,426.06
Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 4,404,479.62 2,473,183.56
Notes: Amount Amount

1|Cash and Cash Equivalent consists of following:-
Cash on hand 2,515,726.78 2,274,634.98
Balances with Banks 1,888,752.84 198,548.58
Closing balance of Cash and Cash Equivalent 4,404,479.62 2,473,183.56
0.00

N

Cash Flow has been prepared under indirect method as set out in IND AS-7
Previous Year's figures have been recasted/regrouped, wherever necessary, to confirm to the current years'

@

For and on behalf of the Board

As per Our Separate report of even date attached.

Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. PODDAR AMITA PODDAR For H.C. GARG & COMPANY
(CEO & Director) (Chairperson & Director) CHARTERED ACCOUNTANS
DIN No.: 00143571 DIN No.: 00143486 FRN: 000152C

sSd/- Sd/- sd/-
Akhilesh Poddar Ankit Sharma Madhukar Garg
(Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) Proprietor

M.No. Acs 57446 M.No. 070162

Place: Jaipur
Date : 23/07/2020
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MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD
CIN: L19129RJ1987PLC003889
Regd Office: B-5, Vrindavan Apartment, Vrindavan Vihar, King's Road, Jaipur-302019
Financial Year: 2019-20
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A.Equity Share Capital
. . . Changes in equity share capital during the Changes in equity share capital
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period year 201920 during the year 2019-20
49,759,786.00
B. OTHER EQUITY
Particulars General Reserve Surplus Securities Premium Reserve Total
Balance as at 31t March, 2018 17,170,000.00 22,547,284.92 15,879,929.00 55,507,213.92
Profit for the year -25,239,846.64 -25,239,846.64
Less- Dividend declared
Add : Income Tax Refund received during the year
IND AS Adjustments
Less: Amortization of Leasehold land
Add: Increase in Value of investment due to fair value
Less: Deferred Tax Liabilitty
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 17,170,000.00 -2,692,561.72 15,879,929.00 30,357,367.28
Profit for the year -11,745,877.75
Less- Dividend declared
Add : Income Tax Refund received during the year
IND AS Adjustments
Less: Amortization of Leasehold land
Add: Increase in Value of investment due to fair value
Less: Deferred Tax Liabilitty
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 17,170,000.00 -14,438,439.46 15,879,929.00 18,611,489.54
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone
financial statements.
For and on behalf of the Board As per Our Separate report of even date attached.
sd/- Sd/-
RK. PODDAR AMITA PODDAR For H.C. GARG & COMPANY
(CEO & Director) (Chairperson & Director) CHARTERED ACCOUNTANS
DIN No.: 00143571 DIN No.: 00143486 FRN: 000152C
Sd/- Sd/- sd/-
Akhilesh Poddar Ankit Sharma Madhukar Garg
(Chief Financial Officer)  (Company Secretary) Proprietor
M.No. Acs 57446 M.No. 070162
Place: Jaipur
Date : 23/07/2020
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COMPANY OVERVIEW

Mayur Leather Products Limited (the Company) is a publicly held Company incorporated
on 13th March 1987. The registered office of the Company is located at B-5, Vrindavan
Apartment, Vrindavan Vihar, King's Road, Jaipur-302019. The company is engaged in the
manufacturing and export of Leather Shoes and Shoe Uppers. The majority sales of the
Company comprises of exports. The Company is engaged in production of industrial shoe /
uppers segment both internationally and in the domestic market. The Equity Shares of the
Company are presently listed with the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, ASSUMPTIONS AND NOTES
2.1 BASISOF PREPARATION

. Ministry of corporate affairs has notified roadmap to implement IND AS notified
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2015 as amended by the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules 2016. And according to the said
roadmap the company is required to apply IND AS in preparation of financial
statement from the financial year beginning from 1st April 2017.

. "These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the'lnd AS’) as notified by Ministry of
Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read
with of theCompanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,2016 as amended and
other relevant provisions of the Act."”

2.2 Use of estimates, assumption and judgement

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates,
judgements and assumptions. Actual results could vary from these estimates. The
estimates, judgements and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision effects only that period or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future years (refer
Notes on critical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements). The
management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial
statements are prudent and reasonable.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements comprising of the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss,
Statement of changes in equity, Statement of Cash Flow together with notes comprising a
summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Information for the
Year ended 31st March, 2020 and comparative information in respect of the preceding
period and Balance Sheet as on transition date, i.e. 1st April 2016 have been prepared in
accordance with IND AS as notified and duly approved by the Board of Directors, along with
proper explanation for material departures.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4.1 Basis of Measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis and
under the historical cost convention except following which have been measured at
fair value:
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a. Financial assets and liabilities except those carried at amortised cost

b. Defined benefit plans — Plan assets measured at fair value less present value of
defined obligations

An asset is classified as currentwhen itis:

(a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating
cycle,

(b)Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
(c)Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(d)Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is classified as currentwhen itis:

(a)Expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

(b)Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(c)There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. All other liabilities are classified as non-
current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

4.2 Inventories
a. Raw Material :

Raw materials, components, stores and spares are valued at cost or landed value
whichever is lower. However, materials and other items held for use in the
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in
which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw
materials, components, stores and spares is determined on FIFO basis.

b. Finished goods & work in progress:
Work in progress is valued at cost

Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes
direct materials and labour and a portion of manufacturing overhead based on
normal operating capacity.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

4.3 Statement of cash flows

Cash flows are reported using the method as prescribed in IND AS 7 'Statement of Cash
flows', where by net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash
nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and
item of income or expense associated with investing or financial cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.
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Prior Period Errors

Prior period errors include omissions and misstatements arising from a failure to use
reliable information that was available or could have been obtained when financial
statements for those periods were approved for issue.

"Prior period errors relating to the last comparative period will be shown by restating the
comparative figures of Balance sheet and Profit and loss, wherever necessary. Thus, it will
be disclosed in the comparative financial statements as if the error had not even occurred."

Revenue recognition and other income

a.

Other

Revenue on sale of products

The Company recognise revenues on accrual basis and measured it at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts, volume rebates, GST.
Revenue is shown inclusive of excise duty since excise duty is liability of the
manufacturer which forms part of the cost of production, irrespective of whether the
goods are sold or not.

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the
associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no
continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably.

Export sale has been recognised at the time of removal of goods from factory at
invoice value (whether FOB or CIF) on the basis of exchange rates declared by
Custom Department for that particular month.

No significant financing component exists in the sales.
Revenue from services (Job Charges Received):

Revenue from services is recognised in the accounting period in which the services
are rendered.

Export Benefits:

Export benefits in the form of Duty Drawback, Duty Entitlement Pass Book (DEPB)
and other schemes are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss when the right
to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of exports
made and when there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection
of the relevant export proceeds.

income
Interest

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’'s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend

Dividend income is recognized in the Statement of profit and loss when the right to
receive dividend is established.
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C. Lease Rent

Lease Rent is recognized as income in the Statement of profit and loss on accrual basis i.e.
as and when lease rentis due.

4.7 Property, Plantand Equipment

"Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that:(a) are held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for administrative purposes; and(b)
are expected to be used during more than one period."

Items such as spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised in
accordance with this Ind AS when they meet the definition of property, plant and
equipment. Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory.

Initial recognition: The Company has applied for the one time transition exemption of
considering the carrying cost on the transition date i.e. April 1, 2016 as the deemed cost
under IND AS.The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price, including non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of
bringing an asset to working condition and location for its intended use. It also includes the
initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which itis located.

Subsequent expenses and recognition: Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, are normally
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the costs are incurred.
Subsequently Property, Plant and Equipment are carried at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Gain/loss on disposal: The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on the date of disposal or retirement.

Depreciation: Property, Plant and Equipments except free hold land is depreciated on
Straight Line Method in the manner prescribed in Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013.
Depreciation on additions and deletion during the year has been provided on pro-data basis
with refernce to the month of addition and deletion.

Capital work in progress

The expenses relating to the construction of building is capitalised at the time when they
are incurred. And when the asset would be completed, the same shall be transferred to
asseta/c.

4.8 Leases

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income
on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in
line with expected general inflation to compensate for the excepted inflationary cost
increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless either (a) another systematic basis is
more represantative of the time pattern of the user’'s benefit even if the payments to the
lessors are not on that basis, or (b) the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in
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line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases. In the event that lease premiums are paid to enter into operating leases, such
premiums are recognised as a prepaid expenditure and amortised over the period of lease.

Financial lease transactions entered are considered as financial arrangements and the
leased assets are capitalised on an amount equal to the present value of future lease
payments and corresponding amount is recognised as a liability. The lease payments made
are apportioned between finance charge and reduction of outstanding liability in relation to
leased asset.

Leasehold land has been amortised over the remaining period of lease term.
Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes, trade discount
and rebates less accumulated amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if any. Such
cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Investments in Subsidiary

The Company has invested in shares of its subsidiary Mayur Global Private Limited of
whose 52% shares are in hand of Mayur Leathers Product Limited.

Borrowing

Borrowings are initially recognised at net of transaction costs incurred and measured at
amortised cost. Transaction cost is amortized over the period of Borrowing using straight
line method

Employee retirement benefits
a. Short - term Employee Benefits:-

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service
are classified as short-term employee benefits and they are recognised in the period
in which the employee renders the related services

The Company recognises the undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for services rendered as a liability after deducting
any amount already paid.

b. Post-employment Benefits:-

(a) Defined Contribution Plan: Contribution to superannuation fund is recognised
as an expense in the Statement of Profit & Loss as it is incurred. There are no other
obligations. Eligible employees receive benefits from a provident fund which is a
defined contribution plan. Both the eligible employee and the Company make
monthly contributions to the provident fund plan equal to a specified percentage of
the covered employee's salary.

Earnings per share

. Basic earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable to
the shareholders’ and weighted average number of shares outstanding during the
year.

. Diluted earnings per share is computed using the net profit for the year attributable

to the shareholder’ and weighted average number of equity and potential equity
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shares outstanding during the year, except where the result would be anti-dilutive.
4.14 Impairment of assets

An asset is considered as impaired when at the date of Balance Sheet there are indications
of impairment and the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and value in use). The carrying amount is reduced to
the recoverable amount and the reduction is recognized as an impairment loss in the
Statement of Profitand Loss. Any impairment gain loss is transfarred to profit and loss.

4.15 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when
there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events and it is
probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not
recognised but disclosed in the notes. Contigent assets is neither recongnised nor disclosed
in the financial statement.

Provisions and contingencies
a) Provisions

. Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
areliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using
equivalent period government securities interest rate.

Unwinding of the discount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as a
finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

b) Contingencies

. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either
not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable
estimate of the amount cannot be made. Information on contingent liabilities is
disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

. Contingent assets are not recognised in the books of the accounts and are not
disclosed in the notes. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain,
then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, but it is recognised as an asset
and the corresponding income is booked in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

4.16 Income taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax
assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the
financial statement. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
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been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are excepted to
apply when the related defferred income tax assets is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses, only if, it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are off set where the Company has
a legally forceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax asset only when and to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during
the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying
amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing
evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and at bank, deposits held at call with
banks.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash
and short term deposits, having maturity less than 3 months.

Other bank balances include FDRs with government department which are not readily
available.

Financial instruments - initial recognition, subsequent measurement and impairment

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a. Financial Assets

. Financial Assets are measured at amortised cost or fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income or fair value through Profit or Loss, depending on the
judgment of the management for managing those financial assets and the assets’
contractual cash flow characteristics.

. Subsequent measurements of financial assets are dependent on initial
categorisation. For impairment purposes, financial assets are assessed
individually.

De-recognition of financial Asset

A financial asset is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the balance sheet)
when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
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. The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset. When the Company has transferred
its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards
of ownership.

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

Trade receivables:

e A receivable is classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect to the amount due
from customers on account of goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course
of business. Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, less expected credit loss if any.

. Impairment is made for the expected credit losses. The estimated impairment losses
are presented as a deduction from the value of trade receivables and the impairment
losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under "Other expenses".

. Subsequent changes in assessment of impairment are recognised in ECL and the
change in impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
under "Other Expenses".

. Individual receivables which are known to be uncollectible are written off by
reducing the carrying amount of trade receivables and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under "Other Expenses".

Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to "Other
Income".

Investments in Mutual Funds

Investments in Mutual Funds have been valued at their fair values through Profit and Loss
account, as on the closing date. The fair value has been taken from the market.

Financial liabilities

At initial recognition, all financial liabilities other than those valued at fair value through
profit and loss are recognised at fair value less transaction costs that are directly related to
the issue of financial liability. Transaction costs of financial liability carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading. The Company has not designated any financial liabilities upon initial
measurement recognition at fair value through profit or loss.

Trade and other payables

A payable is classified as ‘trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of
goods purchased or services received in the normal course of business. These amounts
represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of
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financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liability

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid is
recognised inprofit or loss as "Other Income" or "Finance Expense".

Foreign Currency Transaction

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are normally recorded at the exchange rate
prevailing at the time of transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currency at the year end and not covered by
forward exchange contracts are translated at the year end rates and those covered by
forward contracts are restated at each reporting date by using spot rate and exchange rate
difference was booked. Corresponding Forward Contract Receivable & Payable is also
booked in books of account taken on such forward contracts. The Exchange rate difference
on Forward Contract was charged to Statement of Profit & Loss. Premium paid on such
Forward Contract is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss on periodic basis.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. Non-current
assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less cost to sell. Any resulting impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. On classification as held for sale the assets are no longer depreciated.

Segment reporting

" The Company identifies primary segments based on nature of products and returns and
the internal organisation and management structure. The operating segments are the
segments for which separate financial information is available and for which operating
profit/loss amounts are evaluated regularly by the managing board in deciding how to
allocate resources and in assessing performance."

Government Grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Company will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited to Statement of Profit and

Loss on a straight - line basis over the expected lives of related assets and presented within
other income.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES, ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGEMENTS

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and
various other assumptions and factors (including expectation of future events) that the
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Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between
actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are
known/materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events that existed as at the reporting date, or
that which occured after the date but provide additional evidence about the conditions
existing at the reporting date.

a Property, plantand equipment

. Management assesses the remaining useful lives and residual value of property,
plant and equipment. Management believes that the assigned useful lives and
residual value are reasonable.

b Income taxes

. Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes
and deferred tax assets and liabilities.

. The Company reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred

tax assets. The factors used in estimates may differ from actual outcome which
could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the standalone
financial statements.

C Contingencies

. Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources,
if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the Company as it is not
possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

d Impairment of accounts receivable and advances

. Trade receivables carry interest and are stated at their fair value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for expected credit losses. Individual trade receivables are
written off when management deems them not to be collectible. Impairment is
recognised for the expected credit losses.

e Discounting of Security deposit, and other long term liabilities

. For majority of the security deposits received, the timing of outflow, as mentioned in
the underlying contracts, is not substantially long enough to discount. The
treatment would not provide any meaningful information and would have no
material impact on the financial statements.
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Note 6 FPropecty, Plant & Eguipment
As On 31/03/2020 {As | As On 31/03/2012 jAs
B.No. Desoription per IND AS) per IND AS)
TARGIBLE ASSETS ¢
1 Land
2 Building - 6,991,165.48
3 Furnihure & Fixinres 200,734.46 311,036.51
4 Laboratory Equipments 375,252,534 375,614.53
B Plant & Machinery 15,663,925.16 17,950.566.15
& Office Equipmerta 431,120.38 202.476.28
T Eleciric Installation 98,24 1.04 36, 19800
8 Diesel & Generatar Set 200.316.14 2A7,000.82
o |Campuier 121,721.70 150, 77427
10 Motor Velicle 2,361,519.87 3,435,522.71
11 Shoe Last 160,802,60 214,320.05
12 Dies 100,695.50 181,145.57
13 hdoulds 1,239,532.12 1,494.072.81
Restauramt
14 Compier 13.017.50 13.017.50
15 Electric F‘Itl:lngs 45,776.50 123,282.09
16 Purniture & Fixhives 388, 108.86 233.,010.95
17 Office Equipments 113,473.89 114,770.83
TOTAL 21,833.333.16 32,164,064.58
HNote-T Hoa- Current Investmients
As On 31/03/2020 (A= | As On 31/03/2019 (As
8. M.
e Tpcion per IND AS) pee IND AS)
a Equity shares in Mayer Global Private Limited 13, 560,000.00 L3,560,000.00
13,556,000 shares at the rate Rs. 10/- each |10,00, 000
|shares as ot 3Lst March 2016 and 31t March 2017)
b Invesiment in Mutual Funds F36,270.00 FR 204637
TOTAL 13,806,270.00 16.802.646.37
Note-8  |Dther Non-Current Financial Assets
As On 31 /0372020 (As | As On 31/03/2019 jAs
8.No,
Tepion: per IND AS) per IND AS)
1 Security Deposit with Parties 2,539,121.940 2,440,331.40
TOTAL 2,539,121.40 2,440,331 40
Note-%  |Other Non Current dsset
As On 31/03/2020 {As | As On 31/03/2019 jAs
8.Na. Description per IND AS) per IND AS)
1 Unamoriized Processing Charges = T4,541.36
2 Leass Prepaymeir 4,257 (078,00 4,598,950.00
TOTAL 4,257,078.00 4,675,491.56
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Note-10 Inventories
As On 31/03/2020 fAs | As On 31/03/2019 jAs
M
8.No, Description per IND AS) por IND AS)
1 Faw Maoterial 18,589.552.00 14.881.577.00
2 (Work In process 3,510,172.00 B.A30,072.00
3 Findshed Goods 4,005 460. 46 8,793.361.43
TOTAL 26,4035, 184.46 32,305,010.43
|iRefer Note on accounting policy for valuation policy of investories)
Note-11 Trade Receivable
As On 31/03/2020 {As | As On 31/03/2019 jAs
8.No. Description
per IHD AS) per IND AS)
1 Trade Reccivahles 10,039 73570 16,511,158.82
TOTAL 10 735.7T0 16.511,158.82
Note-12 Cash & Cash Equivalents
As On 31/03/2020 (As | As On 31/03/201% (A=
8.No.
Tuowcistion per IND AS) per IND AS)
1 Bank Balance
- In Fised Deposit 1,050,000.00 50,000.00
- In Current Account aod Deposit Account 838, 752.84 148.548.58
2 <Cash in Hamd
In Local Currency 2,282,255.80 2,041,1L67.00
In Foreign Currency 233.467.98 233.467.98
TOTAL 3 A0L479.63 2,473.153.56 |
Note-13 Other Baok Balamce
As On 31/03/3020 {As | As On 31/03/2019 (As
5.No.
Degoription per IND AS) per IND AS)
1 Unpaid Dividend Accoumt 750,671.00 879,087.75
TOTAL T80,671.00 B8TD,087.T5
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Note-14 Loans and Advances
As On 31/03/2020 (As | As On 21/03/2019 |As
B.No. Pescription per IND AS) pex IND AS)
1 ADOLF IMPEX 2,500,000.00
2 Auita Gupta [L] 205,426.00 205,426.00
3 ARTHAN BUILDWELL 4,000,000 00 B, 500,000.00
4 ASHOK KUMAR MALHOTRA HUF 2,140,548.00 2,140,548.00
5 DIV REALTORS PUT. LTD. 10,075, 000,00 10,075,000.00
& |Goodwill Enterprises 40,220, 0) &0, 23000
7 H.M.C. SOFTWARE PVT LTD 4.540,061.00 4,540,061.00
B Ishwar Singh Verma 1230, 00000 12000000
o JINDAL BUILDSYS LIMITED 1.929,510.00 1,920.510.00
10 MEGHNA AGARWAL - 1,150,000.00
11 Meernj KEumar Batra - 1,500,000.00
12 NIMAL MED HEALTHCARE - 1,000,000.00
13 NIMISHA FRASHANT 1,000, 00000 1,000,000.00
14 FROACTIVE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PVT. LTD. - 2,500,000.00
18 Magur Global Prt. Lid. (Subskdiaoy Company) 3, 700,000.00 &,000,000.00
18 PUSHEAL INSTITUTE ANIMATION PRIVATE LIMITED - S00,000.00
17 Raom Babu Vijay 435,377.00 435, 377.00
18 Rit Eapar JL] He44,000. 00 F44,000.00
19 SAFETY PROJECTS PVT. LTD. LOAN - 3,500,000.00
20 SHUDHASHISH IT SERVICES LIMITED 9,275 ,004).00 14,375,000.00
21 SHUBHASHISH REALESTATE SERVICES FYT. LTD. 24.5840,000.00 25,300,000.00
22 Sunnise Internetional 2,000 000, B0 2,000,000.00
23 Surya Poles - 65%,410.00
4 Swastik Pre Stress Industries - 331,250.00
28 United Prestress Industrics 66, 806,00 80669600
26 VIKAS LALIT KUMAR MEHATA 1,500 {100 1,500,000.00
Total 6, 302%,038.00 25,002,608.00
Lesg: Provision for Doulrtful Debts 40,220.00 +0.220.00
Grand Total 66,261,818.00 64,962 478.00
Note-15 Other current financial assets
As On 31/08/23020 (A= | As On 8108 /2019 |As
8. No. Desetiption per IND AS) por IND AS)
) Accrued subsidy against interest cost on FDB Limit 39,856.00 108, 026.00
b} Accrued Interest on Losn 6,417, 183.00 +,673,607.00
Ib) Accrued Interest on FDR -32,8%6,00
TOTAL 6,424,213.00 4,781,723.00
Note-16 Other curcent assets
As On 31/03/2020 (As | As On 31/03/2019 (As
5.No. Description per IND AS) pex IND AS)
Ia) Accrued Duty Drawback 156.4837.00 95,364.00
|b) Prepaid Expenses 5,612.00 41,597.00
c} Advances bo Employees & Workers - 170, 795.00
d} Advance Income Tex & TDS Receivable 4,154,376.01 4,432, 743.00
e} Advance with Government Autharttes 13,774,606.07 10,963, 138.52
|0 Lease Pre Paymeat 50,767.00 50, 767.00
haput Tax Credil - -
|.E; Advance payment to suppliscs 13,252 977.87
TOTAL 21,446,264.95 15,757,594.52
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Hote-1T Eeqsity Shage capital
As On 31/03/2020 As On 31/03/2019
8.0,
Desaciption {As per IND AS) |As per TND AS)
1 Authorised :
8,00, (W00 {8, 00,000) Equity
§hares of Rs.10/- each 565,000,000.00 58.000,000.00
z Tasusd b Gabacribed
18,34, BOD (418,34,800) Equity
shares of R=.10 sach /- 45,348,000.00 48,318,000.00
3 Faid Up
2 00 (48.34,500) Equity
jelsarves of Re. 10 each /- 43,348, 000.00 48,348, 0000
I* figures in broacket ars of
reEvioLs Year)
4 |shires Porelted 141178600 141175600
|
Totul 49,750, 7T86.00 49,759, T86.00
I

4.} Equity Shares : - The Company has cne class of eguity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each shareholderis
eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend propesed by the Board of Directors is sulject to the approval of the shareholders
in the enswing Annus] Gemerm] Mesting excepl in case of Imterim dividend. In the event of Hguldation. The Equity sharebolders
ane eligible to recaive the remadnieg aasets of the Company after distribution of all peeforential amounis, in proportion to their

share holding.
|HM¢IMM!&Lﬁﬂnl %m&nﬂihﬂﬁuilhm
Haume of Shkare Holder AS AT 51.05.30 ASATSIONID
No. of Share JeolfShares| WNo.ofBhare | % of Shaces
[Rajendrn Komoe Podidar 1,127,761 23.93% 1027, 761 23.53%
ler CHobal Private Limited 716,241 14,819 716,241 14.81%
Amita Pocdnr 86, 100 14,194 BEE, 100 19.10%
Akhilesh Poddar 256,050 5.51% 256,960 S31%
{Sariin Gupts 250,666 5,37 256,686 5.37%
Total 3448,T18 63.01% 3,046,718 63.01%
lie) Reconcflintion of the Humber of Equity Shures
AEALILIS 20 SRALALOELD
EL L Amount (Be) fist AmountBal
Balsmwn as at the beglonbag of
ihe year ABI4HI0. 00 A4 B000.00 S ETHE00 D AE34E000,.00
Adkdl @ Shares lesued dering the
fyear .00 0.00 100 000
‘Falance as at the end of the
year 4834800.00 43348000.00 4539800,00 45348000.00

.} Equily Sheres : - The Convpany has one claas of equbly shaves having n peor valne of R 10/ - per shooe. Each shoarshol deris eligihle
:iJI"III'Il vite per shore held, The dividend proposed Ty the Boand of Directors s subject to the approval of the shirebolgers in the ensuing
Anatal General Mecting clvept in case of interim divitend. n the event of quidation., The Equity shaccholders are digible to reocive

the remaining assets of the Company afrer distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion o thelr share bolding.
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Notel®

Orther Equity

Degcription

As On 31/03/2020
{As per TND AS)

As Om 31/03/2018
{As por TND AS)

{Reserves and Swplus

1|General Reserve

Al the beginming of the year

17,1 TO000. 0

17,170, 000,00

iclel; Additioms during the year

e withehrawals tramaler

IBahlxz:lllhervnd

L7, 170,000.00

17, 170,000.00

18,879,929.00

AL the beginning of the yeur

-2.,602,561.72

22.547,064.092

iAddd: Prior vear IND AS
Adjnstments

|Opening Bolimces considering IND
AL Adiustoients

-2,659:2.561.72

22.547,254.92

el (Lessl: Adidtitions during the

-11, 748 8T7T.75

-35. 239, 84664

(Add: Unamoctized Transacibon Cost

ﬁ:mmﬁmmu

: Increase in Value of
iivvestimnent e v Gur value

|Less: Dreferved Tax Liakdticey

[Less: Appropriations

Dividend oo Equity Shares
for the Yeor

werl Dividend on Exprity
Slyares for the Year

[Dividend Distribution Tax

[Transfer 1o General Reserve

ivi Declared durning the
Year{015-16)

|Feversal of OTA/DTL

Add: Gther Comprehensive
Income

|Balamce at the year end

|TOTAL

18,611,485.54

30,357, 367.08

Wote 19

Hom-Current Berrowing

8.No.

Description

As On 31/03/2020
tAs per TND AS)

As Om 31/03/2019
(As per IND AS)

1jCamara Bank-8 Cross car Loan

Bamil- Plami & Machnery
2] Loun

Kol buikdon Pet. Lid,

G, 130,554, 0

6,136,594.00

35" ANNUAL REPORT 2019-20




MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD.
I1SO 9001:2008 Certified Star Export House

Tote-20 Deferved tax Habilities (Mot}
As O 31/037 2020 As Om 31/03/2019
8. No.
Deseription (As per TND AS} {As per IND AS)
hlajor compronemis of defecred i
‘balnnoes b
1| Deferred Tax Lisbilities
Dieferred Tox Linkilitics 1.430,413.34 1.430,413.34
TOTAL 1,430,415.34 1,450,413.54
Tote-21 Current Borrowing
As Ou 31/03/2020 As On 31/03/2019
8.Ho.
Dusariptln {As per IND A5} {As pex IND AB)
Wadking Captital Loan repayable
ot dedvand frod Banks
A Secured
LiCanara Bank - FBI Limit 5,633,313.00 3,254,333,00
2| Canara Bank - Packing credit 3,000, 000,00 21,985459.00
3|Canara Bank - CC Limit 0, 140, D0, 0 40, 586,450.00
41 Adityn Birln Finance Lid - 1,724,936.20
Canara Bank- Plant & Machnery
BiLoan - 1,500, 000, 00
Sit‘amra Bank- Cor Loan Alio G532, B44.00 Taf,013.68
Total Secmved Loan (A} I5,436,156.00 69,929,221.88
B Unsecured
1{Canara Bank 33,131 544,14
2|IDI?C First Bank 225, 77426 -
Total Unsecured Loan (8) 22,457,918 40 -
TOTAL IA+E) G1,893.474.540 69,925,221 68
I
Nature of Becurity and terms of repaymont for Cerrent Borrowiag
Nature of Security
Secured Borrowings oeationsd
abaove (1), (2] and (3] ace seowred by
way of Trade recelvables, Irbmrest ruie & 1006%:
breniores, Plond S Mochinery
and Building
Note:22 Trade Payables
As Ou 3170372020 As Om 31/03/2019
Deser
&.No. ption {As per IND AS} fs per IND AS}
1 Trads Payablcs 25,724, 775.07 10,526,128.66
TOTAL 25,724,775.07 10,324, 128.66
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Kote-23 Other Carrewt Finsncisl Linbiities
Az On 31/03/2020 As Om 3170372019
&.No, Deseription {As per THD A5} A= per TND AS)
(Current maturities of lang term
1 burrowings freler Note No. 2.5 -
2 (m:m.nﬂmg linbilities o 880,671.00 123,528.00
TOTAL 4,880,671.00 122.525.00
Note-24 Other Carrewt Linhilities
BN As Om 31/03/2030 As Om 31/03/2018
F (As per THD AS) A= per INDy ASH
1 Binludory Lishilitkes 56825500 1, 164,003.38
2 e Linhilities 5,456, 835.00 b7.799.812.13
3 Salary & Wages 2.243,574.00
a Expenses Payables 13,533,330.04
5 Bhort Term Provisions 173205, 04 A0S, B (R0
TOTAL 23,315,812.04 593006 14.51
Note-25 Frovishoms
Az On 31/03/2020 As Om 31/03/2019
[As pox THD AR A= pex THI ASY
S.No. Deseription
1 FProviston for Inoome Teo -
3 Proposed Dividend
3 Dividend Distribation Tax Payable
TOTAL e 5
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Note 36: Revenne From Operations

104

For the period ended For the perlod ended
Rrtiotons 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
ja) Sale of products
fil Export Sales
Shoes 7.124 865.00 40,145,184.60
Upper 5,668 675.64 5,830,561.21
Others 52,237.50
(il Local Sales
Shoes 82,389 836.14 1876301329
Others 855,250,00 -
(i) Other Operating Income
Duty Drawback
Shoes 263, 500,00 164, 814.00
Upper 202,722.00 1,150,601.00
Dty Credit Scdpts -
Total 96,504,857.78 126,196,401.69
|
Note 27: Other Income
I
Partical For the period ended For fhe ended
n P.na.auzu n m9
Recovery agpinsy loss of damaged goods
Rent Received|city Office) £1,648.00 182.648.00
Fent Received 3,680,280,00 3,660,280,00
Interest on Loan 9,111,298.00 8,950,397_00
Interest on FDR =32 856,00 «280,301.55
Interest Recetved 52,072.00
Freight AT AT1.01 22526781
Dividend Received
Service Tax Refund
Exchange Rate Difference 650,828.11 1,520,223 26
Scrap Sales 2,044 82026
Interest on Income Tax Refund 275.576.00 325,790.00
Rate Difference in Export Material
Insurance claim receivahle for lost material
Claim for Cruality Difference
Discount Recelved 2268.00 1,876.00
Increase in value of Mutual loods 45,444,588 156,486.37
FPS License Recajved 2,734 020,00
Other 48,600.00 50.957.00
Total 15,997 850.25 17,540,646.89
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For the period ended For the period ended
Fortioutuie 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Opening Stock 14.881,577.00 16,608,217.00
Add: Purchase of Raw Material 67.518,308.37 79,965,606.81
Add: Frﬂ'ght 2,181,523.86 2,495 83548
Add: Insurance - #.182.00
84 581.410.23 99,075.141.29
Less; Closing Stock 18,889,552,00 14,881,577.00
Total 65,601,858.23 84,196,564.29
Hote 29: Changes in inventories of Finished Goods & WIP_
For the anded For the anded
Eedtionlens Mm :nm:;
Opening Inventories
Finished Goods £,793.361.43 B.772,146.76
Work in progress B.630,072.00 11,025,331.00
1742343543 20,797.476.75
Less: Closing Inventories
Finished Coods 4,005 46046 B,793,361.43
Work in progress 3,510,172.00 8,630,072.00
751563246 17,423,433.43
INCREASE/ (DECREASE) 9,907,800.97 3,374,043.32
Note 30: Em benefits
Farthond For the Pericd ended For the period ended
31.03.2020 HM!
i Salanies & Other Allowanoe 16,640,891.00 17 491,736.00
L] Leswe Encashment 1,311,278.00 103,684.00
i) Reimbursement of Medical Expenses §33,976.00 1,110,376.00
fiv) Refminrsement of Conveyance Expenses 237.904.00 379.286.00
Insurance Premium on Mediclaim & Gratuity
iv) scheme 26,768.00 57,767.00
fri) Contribubion to Provident Fund 532, 756.00 477,314.00
[wrtid) Bonus 787 573.00 885 446.00
fix) Contribution to ESIC 211,451.00 315,878.00
ix Contribution to Grarmity 217,262.00 §32,169,00
{x0) Insurance Premium Keyman [nsurance Policy -
i Staff wellare Expenses 490 876.75 365,488.00
(i Security Charges §68,879.00 641,820,00
fxiw) C'leaning, and House I‘{ewing, 368,179.00 531,330.00
fiev) Processing Charges 7.705,074.75 11,342,650.34
fvi) Production Incentives 528,577.00 239.074.00
{cvli) Lease Rent for Supply of Manpower 900,000.00 3,300,000.00
Total 31,553 44550 38,074,137.34
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Note 31: Finance Cost

For the period ended For the perod ended
il 31103.2020 31032019
fi} Bank Charges T37.801.25 BaT,358.24
i) Interest on CC Limit 3,885,500.00 4,627,318.00
L] Interest on FOB Limit utilised 120,337.00 271.504.00
{iw) Interest on Packing Credit 2,366,896.99 1,369,180.00
v} Interest on Term Loan Plant & Machinery 903 970,44 926,940.00
i) Prumainﬁ chﬂrgl.-u of term Inan 16,8600.00 222.383.60
i} Bank Penal Charges 4,583.00 =
i) Intersst on Vehicls loan 6543467 T2,886.00
iix} Rating Charges 25,000.00 -
20} Interest on TDS 130,254.00 20.191.00
Total 8,254,286.35 8,156,770.84

Note 32: Other expenses

I

For the period ended For the period ended
ENCETi 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
(=) MARUFACTURING EXPENSES

Insurance Premium (Comprehensive & Others) 71,165.00 65,179.00

Powar, Fuel & Water 5.519,445.68 4,944 276.00

Repairs & Maintenance

-Machinery & Electricals 153,707.00 256.685.08

-Building 395.00 3834 626.00

Consumable Stores

Development fLaboratory & teating 419,644.90 218,885,90

Rubber Cess 2720.00 5.025.00

Total 6,167,107.58 9,319,876.86

(L] SELLING EXPFENSES

Clearing & Forwarding Expenses 118,490.00 781,364.47

ECGC Premiam 207 344,12 450,132.63

Claim for Quality §& Repair - 84,166.80

Dizcount on Sales - 133,116.10

Emhang Eate difference l'ureigu CUrrency =33,903.00 =16,139.00

Embassy Legizlation Charges - 58,500.00

Rate Difference Inter state Supply -

Incentive Clearance Exp - A,000.00

F\‘elght & Cm'-l'aﬁu Ouward 1,937 667.08 2,408,192.33

Inapection Fes - 1,580.00

Licence Fee - £4,469.00

Bales Promotion Expenses 46 868.16 139,147.00

Bales Commision 1,710.676.00 3,064 ,610.72

lnadln&f Unlmdqu C‘har@ 39,792.00 83 250.00

Paclmging Expense - 968.00

Tender Application fee - 22,740.00

Labour Expenses - -

Penalty & Demand 266,355.00

Total 4.203,087.36 8,188,986.10
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ici ADMINISTRATION EXPERSES
Leage Rent for Inmovable Property 3,300,000.00 3.800,000.00
Conveyance Expenses 1.543,962.00 203661441
Postage & Courier Expenses 318,202.38 292 236.95
Donation 2,100.00 42 100.00
180 Expenses 16,000.00 15,000.00
Insurance Premiin { Vehicle) 104,184,040 212,391,00
Irrterest Paybls to others 58.00 631.88
Payment to Auditors
-Statutory Audit Fess 175 000,00 478, 15.00
=Tax Audit
-Oither Services 1,542,000.00
Legal & Professional Expenses 1,824,222.08 1,778428.75
Listing Fees & Secretarinl Comp. Expenses 806.002.00 811,630.50
Membership Fees & subscription 236,700,00 282 02704
Mizcellaneous Dxpenses 1.511.855.43 214,336.91
Mizcellaneous Balances Writen OHff 2 700.00 1,367 30477
Priniiuﬁ and Stationery 53,181.69 151,675.00
Repairs & Maintenance -Grenernl B8,485.00 318,505.85
Repair & Malntenance-Vehicle 222 A68.80 235, 786.70
Rexit Ehﬂrg's 5,315,074.00
Telephone and internst Expenses 13771429 285,112 96
Amortization of leasehold land 48,530.00 50, 767.00
Dicsel and Oil 500.00
Round off «43.79 235.78
Prior Period Irems -
EPD & 3.5% 1,235,002.34
NCD @ 1.5% 542 847 8T
TD & .5% 59,349.63
Lease d Rent Exp 111,262.00
Parking Exp -
lravelling Expenses
-Forelgn - 832,304.00
-Local 452 534.00 450,666.27
Total (C) 19,629,889.63 13,755,757.74
Total (A+B+C) 30,090,084.57 31,264,632.70 |
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Hote 33: Exceptional Items

Particulars

For the period ended
1032020

For the period ended
31.03.2019

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets

-27 078,786.02

Prior Period Item

1,782,989.00

Total

=25,285,797.02

Note 34: Income Tax Expenses

Tax expense recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Particolars

For the period ended
31.03.2020

For the period ended
31.03.2019

Current Tax

Provigion for Income Tease (Current Year)

Bhort f(Excess) Provision for incometax of
earlier Years Adjnsted

Total

Deferred Tax

Deferred Tax charge/|credit)

-03,580.91

Total Deferred Income Tax expense/{benefit}

-83,589.91

Tax in respect of earlier years

Total income tax expense
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35 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

35.1

35.2

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and
execute its business strategies. The Company’s financial risk management policy is
set by the Managing Board.

Financial risk factors

The Company'’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables, borrowings
and other liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to manage
finances for the Company’s operations and also for purchase of capital assets and
for safeguarding its interests under contracts.

The Company has given loans to other parties, trade and other receivables,
investments in equity shares and cash and cash equivalents that arise directly from
its operations as a part of its financial assets.

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.

b. Interest Rate Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that
may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument. The value of a
financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign
currency exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market
risk sensitive instruments. Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive
financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency
receivables, payables and loans and borrowings.

b. Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that a counter party will not meet its obligations under a
financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss.

The Company makes major of its sales, either on an advance basis or against credit,
and hence the credit risk is minimal. Financial Instruments like trade receivables
are subject to slight credit risk against which the Company has booked Expected
Credit Losses.

The ageing of trade receivables as on 31st March 2020 is as below:

; Dwse wpto 56 Dise for mare than 36
Pasticulars Total

irood

Dokl

10,022.736.78 ; 10.022.735.79

Onhers

s

|Erpected Credil Lowses

10,022 736.79 - 10,022.735.78

The ||.§;¢i.5 of trade reorvables as oo st March X9 = ns belown

{In Ruppees)

D wrpltns 36 Dhse for mare thaw 36

Bloilhe Msndha

Total

aood

16,511,158.82 16,511, 158,82 |

[Proabiful

17848942 17D, 480.42

(Onrhers

[Gioomes
{Bixpected Ceealif Losses

16,511,158.82 19488 .42 16,680,648.24
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c. Liquidity risk

. Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and
future cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.
. The Company’s objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to

meet its cash requirements. The Company monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs.
Market Risk
Commodity price risk and sensitivity
Being a manufacturing Company, the commodity risk of the Company is there. In
case of some commodities sold by the Company, there is a price risk for which no
specific arrangements have been made by the Company.
Expected Credit Losses
100% Expected Credit losses are recognised for all financial assets which have
become due for more than 36 months.
Financial instruments and cash deposits
The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market
reputation and service standards to select the banks with which balances and deposits are
maintained. The Company does not maintain significant cash and deposit balances other
than those required for its day to day operations. The rest amount is deposited in the PD
account, with the government, which can be withdrawn as and when required and on
which interest, as fixed by government, is being received. This PD account is a risk free
deposit.
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future
cash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses.
The Company’s objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its
cash requirements. The Company monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to
ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs.
Market Risk
Commodity price risk and sensitivity
Being a manufacturing Company, the commodity risk of the Company is there. In case of
some commodities sold by the Company, there is a price risk for which no specific
arrangements have been made by the Company.
Expected Credit Losses
100% Expected Credit losses are recognised for all financial assets which have become due
for more than 36 months.
Financial instruments and cash deposits
The Company considers factors such as track record, size of the institution, market
reputation and service standards to select the banks with which balances and deposits are
maintained. The Company does not maintain significant cash and deposit balances other
than those required for its day to day operations. The rest amount is deposited in the PD
account, with the government, which can be withdrawn as and when required and on
which interest, as fixed by government, is being received. This PD account is a risk free
deposit.
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36 Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instrument by category and hierarchy

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the

instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other

than in aforced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1. Fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade and other short term receivables,
trade payables, other current liabilities, short term loans from banks and other
financial institutions approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short term
maturities of these instruments.

2. Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the
Company based on parameters such as interest rates and individual credit
worthiness of the counterparty. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken to
account for expected losses of these receivables. Accordingly, fair value of such
instruments is not materially different from their carrying amounts.

3. IND AS 101 allows Company to fair value its property, plant and machinery on
transition to IND AS, the Company has fair valued property, plant and equipment,
and the fair valuation is based on deemed cost approach where the existing carrying
amounts are treated as fair values.

"The fair values for loans and security deposits were calculated based on cash flows

discounted using a current lending rate.In case of security deposits, Company has used

the fixed deposit rate of the year of making advance.They are classified as level 3 fair values
in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counter
party creditrisk."

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a

current borrowing rate. They are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy

due to the use of unobservable inputs, including own credit risk.

For other financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortised cost, the carrying

amounts are equal to the fair values.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of

financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: Quoted prices / published NVA (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets

or liabilities. It includes fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets and are

based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date and financial instruments like
mutual funds for which net assets value (NAV) is published mutual fund operators at the
balance sheet date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

It includes fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market

(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation techniques.

These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is

available and rely as little as possible on the company specific estimates. If all significant

inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable then instrument is included in

level 2.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that

is, unobservable inputs). If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable

market data, the instrumentis included in level 3.
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Particulars As at 315t March, 2020 As at 31st March 2019
Carrying Amount |  Fair Value Carrying Amount|  Fair Value
Financial Assets designated ot amostised cost
Trude Recelvalbies 10,032, 735,79 10,022,735.79 16,211,158.82 16,511,155.52
Cach & Cosh Bgubvalents 4,404 470,60 4,404 ATD.62 2.473,183.556 2ATS, 183 56
Louns and Advences GEA61810.00| 66,261 81000 4, D63 4TR.00 04 053 AT8.00
Other Financial Asseta | Curvent and noo-ourrent] B.063,.534.40 8,953,334 40 723005440 7.022,054.40
Particalars As at 31st March, 2020 As al 31st Morch 2019
Carrying Amount Fair Value Casmrying Amount Fair Valae
[Financkal Assels desigaated at fair value through othes compreReisive
Income B -
Porticulirs As at 3ist March, 2020 As at 31st Movch 2019
Carrying Amount Fair Vahae Camying Amount Fair Valuz
Financial Assels dosigaated at fair valtie through profit and loss
Buiual Funds 336 270,00 336,270,00 333264637 3332 646.57
Particalars As at 31st Merch, 2020 As at 31st March 2039
Carrying Amount Fadr Value Carrying Amount |  Falr Value
| Financial Lisbilitiss designated at amartised cost
Barrowings (Mon-Current and Current] 68,030,068.40|  G68,030,068.40 76,023 GRA.20 B9.301,715.00
Trade Payables 25,724,775.07| 3578477507  10,326.128.66 9,163,428, 14
Cithier Financinl Liabifities 4,880,671.00 +.880,671.00 122,528,00 A48.265.00
Particulars As ok 315t March, 3020 As at 31st March 2019
Carrying Amount |  Pair Valus | Carrying Amount |  Fair Value
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37 FAIR VALUE HEIRARCHY

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of Company’s asset and

liabilities, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3 as described below:

a Quoted prices/published NAV (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1). It includes fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets and are based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

b Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2). It includes fair value of the financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market (for example, interest free security deposits) is determined by
using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of
observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on the
company specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable then instrumentis included in level 2.

c Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (level 3). If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrumentis included in level 3.

Fair Value of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities accounted for in the Standalone

Financial Statements as on the reporting date of the entity

As at Flst March 2030
Particulars Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3
Finansial Assets
Trade Recehvables WL TA5.79
Cagh & Cash Equivalents 440, F7 02
Cither Finamcial Assets B 960304 40
Invastmenis 14,606 210,00
Financial Liabilitees
Borrowings (Non-Cument aod Coxoent) GRDA0LO06E 40
Trade Payables I5,724,775407
Chher Financial Linhilities A 88067100
As st Tt March 2009
Particulars 1 Lawel 'I ________ s Lewval -?__ - Level 3
Financial Assets
‘Trada Receivalikes 165H, 16682
Cash & Cash Eqpuivalents 2ATINGESSH
Ohher Financial Assets
Tnvesiments FATEAGLI0 16,802 8467
Financial Liabilities
S e e rseaaesan|
Tracke Payables 10,226, 12866
Oihir Financial Liabilithes 15, 32800
Dy thwe e ended  March 1. 2009 snd Year Encdec] 31t March, 2020 there were no tansfer ingo and out of Level 1 Ialr valse measuremnents,
Following table describes the valuation techmigques vsed and ey inputs to valustion for level 3 of the fnir value hisvaochy as at March 31, 2000 and|
Iolarch 31. 2019 respectively:
Particulars Fair Valus Heivarchy Valmation Technigqus Imgrantss L]
Fisancial Assote
Ipwestmenis Levell Chaoted prices
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Objective

The primary objective of the Company’'s capital management is to maximize the
shareholder value. i.e. to provide maximum returns to the shareholders. The Company’s
primary objective when managing capital is to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital
structure and healthy capital ratios and safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to support its business and provide maximum returns to the
shareholders. The Company also proposes to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.

Policy

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in
economic conditions and the rules and regulations framed by the Government under
whose control the Company operates.

Process

The Company manage its capital by maintaining sound/optimal capital structure
financial ratios, such as net debt-to-equity ratio on a monthly basis and implements capital
structure improvement plan when necessary. Debt-to-equity ratio as of March 31, 2019
and March 31, 2018 is as follows:

Particulars Ason 31stMarch, | As on31st March
20240 2019
Total Non current debt 6,136,594.00 5,094 460.32
Total equity 68,371,275.54 80,117,153.28
Ratio B98% 6.36%
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Related Party Transactions

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS 24, name of the related party, related party
relationship, transactions and outstanding balances including commitments where
control exits and with whom transactions have taken place during reported periods, are
reported as under:

() Related party name and relationship:
Particullars Designation

{7) Executive Direchors:

RK Poddar Diirector

RV Gupta Director
Amita Poddar Director

M.P Kejriwal Independent Director
Mano] Sharnan Independent Divector

(b) Relatives of Executive Directors with whom transactions have taken place:

Particullars Relation
R.K Poddar Director
Akhilesh Poddar Director's Son

(c) Non Excecutive Directors and Enterprises Over which they are able to exercise
significant influence (With whom transaction have taken place):

Particulars Dﬂlgnal:hn
Mayur Global Pyt Lid. Subaidiary Company
(d) Other Related Parties

Particulars Dmlinlhﬂn
Mayur Undgouwters Linvited Director's brother's Firm
ICLASSIC INTERMN A THOM AL Firm of Directors Brother
STOUT (INDIA) INDUSTRIES Firm of Directors Brother
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(ii) Transactions Carried Out With Related Parties referred in point 1 above in ordinary course of Business
‘ ‘ (Rs. In Amount) (Rs. In Amount)
Nature of Transactions Related Parties

Referred to in 1(a) above Referred to in 1(b) above Referred to in 1(c) above Referred to in 1(d) above

Purchases
Goods & Material -
CLASSIC INTERNATIONAL

STOUT (INDIA) INDUSTRIES
Mayur Uniqouters Limited 304,365.00

Sales
Goods & Material & Services -
CLASSIC INTERNATIONAL
Mayur Uniqouters Limited 784,415.00

Expenses

Jobwork expenses -
Lease Rent (Manpower & Building) - Mayur
Global Pvt. Ltd (Subsidiary)

Employee Benefit Expenses -

Interest Paid

Other Reimbursements

Income
Rent Income Mayur Global Pvt. Ltd
(Subsidiary) 81,648.00

Jobwork Income -

Interest/Dividend Mayur Global Pvt. Ltd
(Subsidiary) 597,316.00

Purchase of Plant and Machinery -

Related Parties

Nature of Transactions
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019

Outstandings

Payable (Trade Paybles and other Liabilities)
Key Management Personnel

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel 1,233,185.00 756,000.00
End of the year 1,233,185.00 756,000.00

Receivables

Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel (Loans
and advances,trade receivables) 3,700,000.00 12,351,666.00
End of the year 3,700,000.00 12,351,666.00

Executive Directors Compensation

(a) Short term Employee Benefits

Total Compensation
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40 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY
The carrying amounts of assets Pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

As at 31st March,

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 2019

Current Assets
Financial Assets
Floating Charge
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Receivables 10,022,735.79 16,511,158.82
Fixed Deposit lien by bank against term loan
Short Term Loans & advances
Non Financial Assets
Floating Charge
Inventories 26,405,184.46 32,305,010.43
Other Current Assets

Total Current assets Pledged as security

Non Current Assets
First Charge
Land 4,319,418.00 4,802,018.00
Building
Furniture, fittings and equipment
Plant and Machinary including Store & Spares 15,663,925.16 17,950,566.15
Fixed Deposit lien by bank against term loan
Others

Total non-current assets Pledged as security
Total assets Pledged as security 56,411,263.41 71,568,753.40
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PRODUCTS LTD.

The following is a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted

earnings per equity share:

Particulars For the year ended 31st|For the year ended
March, 2020 31* March 2019

Issued number equity shares 4 834 300 4 834 800

Potential Equity Shares - -

Weighted average shares outstanding - 4,834,800 4,834,800

Basic and Diluted

Net profit available to equity holders of the Company used in the basic and diluted earnings per

share was determined as follows:

Particulars For the year ended 31st|For the year ended
March, 2020 31* March 2019

Profit and loss after tax -11,745,877.78 -25,239,846.64

Profit and loss after tax for EPS -11,745,877.75 -25,239 846.64

Basic Earnings per share 2.43 -5.22

Diluted Earnings per share -2.43 -5.22

The number of shares used in computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares

outstanding during the year.

The diluted EPS is calculated on the same basis as basic EPS, after adjusting for the effects of

potential dihutive equity.
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41 B Segment Information
(Rs. In lacs)
Sr. No. Particulars Year Ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019 (Audited)
{Audited)
i Segment Revenue
a Uppers
Export 56.69 59.31
Local - -
Incentives against Exports 2,06 11.51
Increase/ Decrease in Stock - -
Total 58.71 70,81
b Shoes -
Export 71.25 401 .45
Local B33.45 787.53
Incentives against Exports 254 1.65
Increase/ Decrease in Stock - -
Total 907.23 1,190.63
c Others -
Export - 0.52
Local - -
Incentives against Exports - -
Increase/ Decrease in Stock - -
Total - 0.52
c Common
Export - -
Local = =
Incentives against Exports - -
Increase/Decrease in Stock (99.08) (33.74)
Total {99.08) (33.74)
d TOTAL
Export 127.94 461.28
Local 833.45 787.53
Incentives against Exports 4.56 13.15
Increase/ Decrease in Stock {99.08) -33.74
TOTAL REVENUE Bbb.87 1,228.22
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2 Segment Results (Profit/(Loss)
before tax and interest from each
segment ?lmmi ited) 31.03.2019 (Aundited)
a Uppers (20.20) 129
b Shoes a =
Bxport (25.40) {67.49)
Local (326.77) (1L35.62)
o Others - (0.0
d Common e {33.74)
Total (372.37) (235.64)
Common Expenses {116.608) {153.45)
Comumon Income 159.98 175.50
Empmm Item {252.86) -
?:xt before Depreciation and (76.19) (213.20)
Capital Expenditure - -
Depreciation 34.37 38.26
Other Non cash expenditure
before tax from eal:h mg{::;[:vm} (HI056) (25145}
Current Tax
Deferred Tax - 094
Earlier Year Tax 6.90 -
ent Results (Profitf{Loss) After
faﬂmn each sﬂ_-gri:ent " } 1746) (25145)
3  |Capital Employed (Segment assests)
a Uppers 59 7.84
b Shoes = -
BExport 743 53.08
Local 86.89 10412
Ie Others - 0.07
Tatal 100.23 16511
Common Asset 1,817.30 2,098.09
TOTAL Asset 1,917.53 2.263.21
4 Capital Employed (Segment
liabilities)
a Uppers . -
b Shoes - N
i Others - -
Total = =
Common Liabilities 1,233.82 146205
Tatal Liabilities 1,233,582 1,462.03
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Other Disclosures | [

Segment have been identified in line with the IndianAccounting Standard 108

The Company has disclosed business segment asthe primary segment. Segments have been
identified talcing into account nature of productthe differing risk Ik returns, the organisation
struchre and internal reporting systene.Company has discomtinued business of resaturant
activity hence it is not material and reportable as differentsegment hence treated as part of other

activity

The company mainly engaged inExport sales. Geographical Segment is Identified in line with the
Accounting Standard Ind AS-108,

Segment Revenue, segment resulls, segment assets and segment liabilities include the respective
amounts identifiable to each of the segments as also amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.
The expenses which are not directly allocable to the business segments are shown as common
expense. Assets and liabilities that cannot be allocated between the segment are shown as

commeon assets/ liabilities respectively.
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MAYUR LEATHER PRODUCTS LTD.
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42 [Financial and Derivatives Instruments
The company have following foreign curreny earnings and expenditures :
‘ ‘ ‘ (Amount in Rs)
Expenses in foreign currency
. As at 31th March, | As at 31st March,
Particulars
2020 2019
Travelling 829,304.00
Claims and Compensations - For quality and development
Raw Materail Purchase 773,373.00 4,458,906.00
Membership - 187,714.00
773,373.00 5,475,924.00
Earning in Foreign Currency
. As at 31th March, | As at 31st March,
Particulars
2020 2019
Export of Goods on FOB Basis 12,793,540.64 46,127,973.40
12,793,540.64)  46,127,973.40
The management has considered all the possible effects, if any, that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the results of operations, liquidity, capital
resources and carrying amounts of trade receivables and inventories (including biological assets). In developing the assumptions and estimates relating to the uncertainties
5 son the balance sheet date in relation to the recoverable amounts of the assets, the management has considered the global economic conditions prevailing as at the date of
approval of these financial results and has used the internal and external soures of information to yhe extent determined by it. The actual outcome of these assumptions
and estimates may vary in future due to the impact of the pandemic. The managements will continue to monitor and assess the ongoing developments and respond
accordingly.
44 |Gratuity Liability has been calculated on estimated basis and not as per Acturial Valuation which is requied as per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits"
5 The Company has given Loans and Advances are subject to Confirmation and Reconciliation.

For and on behalf of the Board

As per Our Separate report of even date attached.

Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. PODDAR AMITA PODDAR For H.C. GARG & COMPANY
(CEO & Director) (Chairperson & Director) CHARTERED ACCOUNTANS

DIN No.: 00143571

DIN No.: 00143486

FRN: 000152C

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Akhilesh Poddar Ankit Sharma Madhukar Garg

(Chief Financial Officer) (Company Secretary) Proprietor ‘
M.No. Acs 57446 M.No. 070162

Place: Jaipur

Date : 23/07/2020
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